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Calendar. of the Local Courts for 1883. 

COUNTY COURT SITTINGS FOR MOTIONS, &c. 

January 1st to 6t1i, inclusive, at 11 a. m.; April 2nd to 7th, 
inclusive, at 11 a. m.; July 2nd to 7th, inclusive, at 11 a. m.; 
October 1st to 6th, inclusive, at 11 a. m. 

COT;NTY COURT SITTINGS FOR TRIALS, dec., AND 
GENERAL SESSIONS. 

June 12 and December 11, at 1 P. M. 

COUNTY COURT SITTINGS WITHOUT JURY. 

April 3 and October 2 at 10 A. M. 

DIVISION COURT SITTINGS. 
No. I.-At Guelph, at 10 a. m., January 4, February 6, March 

1, April 4, May 1, June 1, September 4, October 3, 
November 1, December 6. For Judgment Sum-
monses, at 12 (noon) Febrtdry 8, April 9, June 4, 
August 7, October 1, December 7. A. A. Baker, Clerk. 

No. II.-At Aberfoyle, at 11 a. m., February 2, May 4, August 
3, November 2. Wm. Leslie, Clerk. 

No. Ill.-At Rockwood, at 9:30 a. m., January 5, March 2, May 
3, Jay 4, September 6, November 5. D. L. 
Shultz, Clerk. 

No. IV.-At Fergus, at 10 a.  ni. ,  January 24, Maich 21, May 16, 
July 18, September 19, November 14. T. W. 
Thomson, Clerk. 

No. V.-At Erin, at 9 a. 	January 31, March 28, May 15, 
July 17, September 18, November 13. Wm. 
Tyler, Clerk 

No. VI.-At Elora, at 10 a. w.,  January 23, March 20, May 17, 
July 19, September 20, November 15. John 
McLean, Clerk. 

No. VII.-At Drayton, 12 (noon), January 9, ...arch 13, May 8 , 
July 10, September 11, November 6. Geo. Allan, 
Clerk. 

No.VIII.-At Arthur, at 9 a. m., January 10, March 14, May 9, 
July 11, September 12, November 7. John P. 
Jordan, Clerk. 
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No. X.-At Palmerston, at 9 a. m., Januuary 12, May 11, Sep-tember 14. 
At Harriston, at 9 a. m., March 16, July 13, No-

vember 9, A. C. R. Saunders, Clerk. 
No. X1.--At Mount Forest, 10 a. in., January 11, March 15, 

May 10, July 12, September 13, November 8. 
James C. Wilkes, Clerk. 

No.  XII.-At Drayton, at the same times as No. VII. 

Wellington County Council For 1883. 
R. Stevenson-Warden. 
Arthur Township-Reeve, R. Stevenson; deputy-reeve, 1). Brown. 
Ar thur village-Reeve, Dr. Allen. 
Clifford-Reeve, A. S. Allan. 
Drayton-Reeve, Dr. Emes. 
Elora-Reeve, David Foote. 
Eramosa-Reeve, Thomas Waters ; deputy-reeve, John Mutrie. 
Erin-Reeve, J. W. Burt ; lat deputy reeve, Chas. McMillan': 

lnd deputy, Robt. Reid. 
Erin village-Reeve Thos. Carberry. 
Fergus-Reeve, Jas. Argo. 
Guelph Township-Reeve, M. Sweetman ; deputy-reeve, J. I. 

Hobson. 
Harristou-Reeve,  G. Gray ; deputy-reeve, J. Robertson. 

Maryboro'-Reeve, John Robinson deputy reeve, John Pater- 

Minto-Reeve, J. Darruch ; deputy-reeve, J. Howse. 
Mount Forest -Reeve, W. Colcleugh ; deputy-reeve, W. W. 

Winfield. 
Nichol-Reeve, J. H. Broadfoot ; deputy-reeve J. R. Wissler. 
Palmerston-Reeve, H. McEwing ; deputy-reeve, L. Knott. 
Peel-Reeve, John McGowan ; 1st deputy, Thomas McManus ; 

2nd deputy, Robt Rudd. 
PilkingMn-Reeve, E. R. Patmore.; deputy, Jas. Ross. 
Puslinch-Reeve,  Win.  Nicoll ; deputy-reeve, 'W. McFarlane 
West Garafraxa-Reeve, H. Cull : deputy.reeve, Win. McDer- 

mott. 
West  Luther-Reeve, R. Murdoch; deputy-reeve, John Mc-

Nabb. 
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ACTIVE MILITIA.
FIR.9T PROVIBIONAL BRIGADE Or raBLD ARTILLERY.-Head-

quartera, Guelph. Organized 24th March, 1880. Two field
batteries. No. 1 organized as a garrison battery 20th July, 1866 ;
changed to a field battery 13th September, 1871. No. 2 organ•
ized 22d March, 1878.

Lieut.-Col. Communding.-A. H. Macdonald, 1 G. S., 1 M. S.
Captaim.-No. l, Wm. Nicoll, I G. S., I M. S. No. 2, George

B. Hood, 1 G. S., 2 M. S.
Lieutenanta.-Alex. Murchison, G. S., No. 1. Arthur Nicol,

1 G. S., No. 2. John Davidson, 1 G. S., No. 1. Walter Mac-
donald, 1 G. S., No. 2.

&cond Lieutendnta,-Wm. Tuck, G. S., No. 2. John Crowe,
Prov., No. 1.

Adjutar.t.-To be appointed.
Surgeon.-Henry Howitt, M.D.
Veterfnury Surgeou.-J. Hugo Reed, V.S.
The Brigade contains 150 non-oommisRioued officers and men,

and eight guns.

THIRTIBTH WELLINGTON BATTALION OF RIFLES.-Ten Ciom-

paniea. Headquarters, Guelph.
Lieut :Col.-Hon. Chas. Clarke, M.P.P., Speaker Legislative

Assembly, Elora.
è[ajora.-James Armstrong, Lisut.-Col., Guelph ; Andrew

McBride, Elora.
Adjutant.-Geo. D. Porter, Lient., Guelph.
Payrnastar.-E.lmund Harvey, Guelph.
Quarter-Maater.-H. H. Swinford, Hon. Capt., Guelph.
Svr,.;,,n-G. T. Orton, M.D.. M.P., Fergus.
Aeat:Surgeôn.-Edward Allan, M.D., Arthur.

WELLINGTON COUNTY,

HIS County is bounded on the north by the county of
Grey ; on the east by the counties ot Dufferin, Peel,
and Halton ; on the south by Wentworth countv ; and

on the west by the counties of Waterloo, Perth and Huron.
Its position is about the centre of the Ontario penil,sula.
It contains twelve townships, viz.: Arthur, Eramosa, Erin,
Guelph, hfaryborough, Miuto, Nichol, Peel, Pilkington,
Puslinch, West Garafraxa and West Luther. There are
also nine town and village corporations, besides the city of
Guelph. The towns consist of Harriston, Mt. Forest and
Palmerston. The villages are Arthur, Clifford, Drayton,
Elora, Erin and Fergus. The distance across the county
at its widest point is about 45 miles, and from north to sout.h
about 55 miles. Thy townships of Amaranth, East Gara-
traxa and East Luther, formerly belonging to this county,
were, on the erection of Dufferin county. set off to form a
portion of the new county, which leaves Wellington county
with an area of about 750,000 acres. About 13 per cent.
of its area is still timbered with beech, maple, elm, cedar,
hamloek, basswood, ash and balsam, used chiefly for fuel,
building and fencing. Several townships have no more
timber than is needed for local requirements.

The surface is generally of a rolling character, and the
soil variable, clay and sandy loarns preponderating.

" Heavy clay exists to the extent of about 13 per cent.,
with a depth of abou6 six inches, and resting on a clay sub-
soil ; clay loam about 40 per cent., with a depth of from
six inches to two feet, and resting on a sand and gravelly
subsoil ; sandy loam about 29 per cent., depth two and a
half feet. with a sand subsoil ; sand, inappreciablb ;
gravelly, about six per cent., depth var;able, with gravelly
subsoil ; black loaln about 12 per cent., depth from one to
three feet, variable sub®oils. A very small proportion is
reported too stony or rocky for profitable cultivation,
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except in the township of Erin, which re ports 10,000 acres,
or about one-seventh of its area. Very v little is so hilly as
to be objectioaable for the purposes ofcultivation ; about
fifteen and a half per cent. is bottom, about eleven per cent.
is swampy, and a smz11 proportion wet, springy land. The
proportion reported rolling and cultivatable is about 73J
per cent. For atricultural purposes about 45;r per cent. is
reported first class; 31 per cent. second clam; and the
remainder third class."* Limestone exists in great abun-
dance, and is extensively quarried along the banks of the
streams. The county is admirauly watered and well snp-
plied with watel power by the Grand River, the S peed,
(Jonestoga and their tributaries, and branches of the
Saugeen.

The county is well suVplied with railroad facilities.
The W. G. & B. R. enters it from the south near the north
line of Puslinch, and traverses nearly the whole length of
the county. passing through Guelph, Elora, Fergus, Alma,
Drayton, Moorefield, Palmerston, Harriston and Clifford,
leaving the county at its extreme north-west corner. The
main line of the Grand Trunk entera the county on its
cast line near Rockwood, and passin through Guelph
leaves the county on the west line of t^e townshi p . The
main line ot the Credit Valley traverses the south border
of Puslinch from east to west, and a branch of the same
road from Orangeville enters the county near Erin, passin g
through Fergus and terminating at Elora. The T. G.
B. R. enters the county on the east line of Luther, and
ring through Arthur, Mt. Forest and Harristou, leaves

county on the west line of Minto. The Stratford &
Lake Huron and Georgian Bay & Lake Erie roads traverse
the township of Minto from south to north, entering the
county at Palmerston and passing through Harriston.

Wellington County originally formed a part of the
Wellington District, which was formed out of the counties
of Halton and Simeoe, and proclaimed a district on the
20th of April, 1888. In order to expedite settlement a line
of road was surveyed from the township of Nichol to Owen
Sound, now known as the Owon Sound Road. The land
on each side of this rond was laid out in fifty acre lots and

-- • Ontario Agrio„Iavai oomo,u.ion.
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given away to actual settlers, with the privilege of purchas-
ing the fifty acres behind, on condition of performing the
stipulated settlement duties, which consisted in actual
residence, the ereetion of a house or building of some kind,
the clearing of a certain portion of the land, and making
the road in front of the lot for half its statute width. These
duties were to be performed within two years from taking
poeeeesion, after which a deed was granted. The system
worked well, and in a short time every lot along the road
was taken up. But few of 'the original settlers remained
on the lots; most of them selling out after making small
clearings. As they got the land for nothind, the money
they received enabled, them to go upon fres^l land with
increased meaus and greater cornfort, while their remo'vaI
made way for a better class of settlers, possessingmore
capital, and consequently able to improve the country
much more rapidly. Another road was subsequently
opened from Nichol to the Saugeen, which was settled in
a similar manner and with eqnal success. The district now
began to fill up rapidly, partly with newly arrived immi-
grants, but principally *ith settlers from the older portions
of the Province, who with the restless spirit characteristic
of the pioneers of the wilderness, had, many of theln, for a
second and a third time, sold ont their improvements and
taken axe in hand to do battle with the fbreat. Gradually
mills were erected on the streams and the nucleus of vil-
lages formed which grew into business centres of more or
less importance. The advent of the railroad and the tele-
graph subsequently added their impetus to the facilities of
settlement, and population flowed in steadily, until at the
present time the county may be said to be all settled, and
contained a population, according to the last census, of
68,959.

The chief products of Wellington aragrain and roots,
the latter largely used for cattle feed. The county is well
adapted to grain growing, stock raising and dairying. It
is said that more turnips are raised and more beef sold in
Wellington than in any other county in Ontario. Accord-
ing to the Report of the Ontario Agricultural Commission
for 1881, the townships sustain 48,238 horned catt1e,17,107
homes, 47,924 sheep and 15,625 hog.;. Of horned cattle



Durham and Durham grades predominate. The prineial
markets of the Dominion are supplied from Guelph with
fat beeves, and in addition large numbers are exported to
England. The horses are heavy draught and general pur-
poee, with some Clydesdale blood ; the sheep, Leicester,
Cotswold and Southdown ; and the hoga principally Berk-
shire grades. One report says : " Wellinnton possesses
betterlierds and more good stock than any other county in
the Dominion. Durham blood is largely diffused, and a
poor beast is becoming a rarity. The county has man,y
rniporters of thoroughbreds and, in addition to Shorthorns,
Iras herds of Herefords, Gailoways and Devong.

TOWNSHIPS.

RTHUR Township lies on the north border, on the
^ Gre^ County line, having Luther on the eut,

Pee and Maryborough on the south, and Minto
on the west. The surface is moderately rolling, an1 the
soil generally heavy elay and clay loam, with an aver age
depth of eight inches and a clay subsoil. The area of the
township is 68,823 acres, 34,000 of whieh are cleared. The
timber consists of beech, maple, elm, cedar, hemlock, bass-
wood and ash. The land is well adapted for agriculture,
spring wheat, barley , oats and peas, being the principal

products. It is well watered by the Conestoga, branches
of the Saugeen, and other small streams. The Owen
Sound Road passes diagonally through the township from
Arthur to Mt. Forest, parellel to which runs the T. G. &
B, Railway, while the Georgian Bay and Lake Erie R. R.
crosses the north-west part, passing through Mt. Forest.
The population is 3,347. There are eight post offices in
the township, viz :-Arthur, Derrynane, Farewell, Kenil-
worth, Mt. Forest, Petherton, Riverstown and Wagram.

Areravs is an incorporated village at the corner of the
townships of Arthur, Peel, West Luther aal West Gara-

ARTHUR,

fraxa, situated on the niaia road from Guel l ► to Owen
Sound. It is a station of the T. G. & B. R. I^, and is dis-
tant from Fer us 12 r,iiles, UranEeville 23 miles, Toronto
72 miles, Mt. forest 15 miles, and from Guel ph 25 miles.
The Registry Office of the North Riding of the county is
located here. The Conestoga river passes through the
village, affording an excellent water privilege. The vil-
lage contains five churches, a printin office, from which
is issued the Arthur Enterpriae, pub^ished weekly, eight
general stores, seven hotels, seven blacksmith shops, five
grocery stores, two furniture stores, two saw mills, five
carriage shops, a woolen mill, two flouring mills, two
flour and feed stores, a planing mill, two harness shops,
a brick yard, a fancy goods store, f'our shoe shops, two
millinery stores, five dress making establishments, sewing
machine store, foundry and machine shop, two butcher
shops, a bakery, two photograph galleries, two banking
houses, one iuerchant tailor, two drug stores, two confec-
tionery stores, a hardware store two liquor stores, an ex-
press and telegraph office, two faw offices, a horse collar
factory, barber shop, tkree shingle mills, three livery
stables two stove stores, a bowling alley and billiard room,
a jewellery store, cooper shop, book stort°, two pump fac-
tories, three loan and insurance offices, an undertaker's
shop, and a population of 1,500. .

The grist mill of Hathaway & Son has been established
13 years. There are three runs of stones.

The shingle mill of Donald McPherson has been estab-
lished two years and employs seven hands, turning out 20
squares daily.

The shingle mill of John and S. A. Small has been estab.
lished two years, employs five hands, and turns out 30 to
40 bunches daily.

The pump factory of the Messrs. Sinall has been estab-
lished e'̂ght years, and employs three hands in the mann-
facture of wood ^umps

The shingle mill of William Ternan has been established
six years, employs five hands, and turns out from 15,000
to 20,000 shingles daily .

The planing mill of J. W. Fraser has been established
seven years and employs five or six Lands in the manufi ►c-
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tore of sash, doors, blinda, and s general building business.
The Arthur Foundry and Maciine Shop was established

in June, 1881, and manufactures plows and other agricnl-
tnral implements. Win. Greenwood.

The brick yard of Henry Fuller has been established
four years, and employs four or five hands, turning out
from 100,000 to 150,000 brick annually.

The saw mill of A. Buscklen has been established 28 years
and employs five hands in the mauufacture ot lumber and
lath.

The Farmers' Mills (flouring) have been established eight
years. There are fpnr runs of stones, besides rollers, with
a capacity of 100 barrels a day.

The saw-mill of Fraser Bros. has been established eight
years, and em ploys seven or eight hands in the manufacture
of lumber and lath.

The Mechanics' Institute was organized in 1878 and
possesses a library of 1,000 volumes. Geo. Hudson, Pres. ;
John Ryan, Sec. ; Archibald McPherson, Librarian.

No. 10 Company of Rifles, Wellington Battalion, was
organized in 1870; W. W. White, Captain; John Fraser,
Lieutenant.

Prince Arthur Lodge, No. 334, A. F. and A. M. was
organized about 1874. A. Fraser, W. M., R. T. Stephen-
son, Sec. Meets Tuesday on or before full moon. There
are 40 members.

Arthur L. O. L., No. 681 was organized over 25 years,

if
Wm. Stephenson, *. M.; Chas. Brandon, Sec.

Meete first Tuesday in each month. There are 36 mem-
bers.

Crusade Lodge, No. 194, 1. O. G. T. was organized in
1874. Samuel A. Small, W. C. Meets Fridays. There
are 55 members.

Arthur Lodge, No. 160, A. O. U. W. was organized
January^ 10th, 1882. M. M. MacMartin, P. M. W.; John
Petty, M W.; Goo. Kirk, Recorder. Meets every alter-
nate Thursday. There are 25 members.

The Presbyterian Church was erected in 1860. It is
built of brick and has a seating capacity of 860. Services
at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m.; Sunday school at 10 a.m. ;$ible

class at 6 p.m.; prayer meeting on Wednesday. There are
150 members.

The Baptist Church is a frame building, seating 300.
Service at 3 p.m.; Sunday school at 1.80 p.m.; prayer
meeting on Wednesday. Rev. John Sirrell, pastor.

The Methodist Church was erected in 1870. It is a frame
building with a seating capacity of 350. Services at 10.80
a.m. and 6.30 p.m.; Sunday school at 2 p.ul.; prayer meeting
on Thursday. Rev. James Charlton, pastor.

The Church of St. John the Evangelist (R. C.) is the
finest church edifice in the vill age. It is built of brick and
has a seating capacity of 800. It was erected in 1872 at
a cost of about $ 11,000. Services at 8 and 10.80 a.m.;
vespers at 7 p.m.; Sunday scheol at 2.30 p' in. There are
about 300 ti►milies. Rev. J. P. Dogerty, priest ; Rev. J. E.
Crinnon, assistant.

Grace Church (Epis.) was erected in 1880, of brick, at a
cost of $2,600, and has a seatinR capacity of 200. Services
at 11 a.m. and 7 p.m.; Sunday school at 9 a.m. There are
100-families and 80 communicants. Rev. Mr. Belt, B.A.,
incumbent.

Up to the year 1840 the site of Arthur village was cov-
ered by the primeval forest, the echoes of which were only
awakened occasionally by the march of the Indians on
their way to and from the Grand River, their trail lying
along about where Francis street now is, on which stood
several empty wigwams. In the fall of that year settle-
ment coulmenced. George street was chopped and a gov-
ernment shanty erected for the reception of emigrants.
Sometimee it was occupied by six or seven families at once,
who were fed by the Government and supplied with a negro
cook. It was in the spring of '41, in this shanty, that the
first death occurred ; the deceased was a child, of about
four years of agae ; death was e.aused by an overdose of
whiskey, which was very plentiful in those daye, For a
conple of years nothing of consequence transpired except
the erection of a few log houses and the destruction of the
Government shanty by fire. The land agent had erected
the mansion on Francis street, which still stands, and is yet
unoceupied. There were two small houses near the junction
of Francis and George streets, and one opposite; a tavom
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and store stood opposite one another a little higher up, and
this constituted the village at this date. But the thriving
condition of Arthur was soon to receive a aevere check.
The hotel keeper drank himself to death; thus the second
death was caused by whiskey. The branch store, whish be-
longed to a gentleman in Fergus, was withdrawn, and the
landlagent recalled. The three citizens went west, and Ar-

thur was left as empty as it was ten years before. The
village remained in this condition until the beginning of
the year 1845. when it became inhabitecl onoe more, by a
much better class of people than the first, and very soon
attained a thriving condition. The village did not show
utuch sigms of growth until '50, and the succeding three
or four years, when it presented quite a thriving aspect,
containing two stores, a post office, an oatrneal, grist and
saw mill, a blacksmith shop, two taverns and a school house.
The first religious exercise was conducted by the l'reeby-
terians, but the first denomination that built a church was
the Episcopalians, in the year '55. In the succeeding years
the village grew steadilv, and gave considerable promise
of some day becoming a-large town.*

The village was incorporated in January, 1F73.

DIGRRYNANE is a post-office in the cast part, 10 miles
north frolr, Arthur.

FeR$wsl,I, is a post village six miles south of Mt.
Forest, and contains a general store, shingle and planing
mill, blacksmith shop, Orange hall, and 40 inhabitants.

The shingle factory of Win. Allen was established in the
spring of 1882, and turns out 20 squares of ahingles daily.
There is a planing mill in connection.

L. O. L., No. 777. W. H. Hamilton, W. M.; Win.
Allen, Sec. Meets first Tuesday in each month. There

are 81 ► members.
The post-office was established March 7th, 1882; semi-

weekly mail.

KENILWORTH is a post village about the centre of the
township, on the Owen Sound road, and is it station of the

We are indebted for the aLove facts of the early settlement to a com-

monicaticn which appeared in the Arthur Bnterpri.re.

ANTHUR. Ix.

T. G. and B. It. It., distant from Arthur eight milea, from
Mt. Forest seven miles, and from Guelph 32 miles. It con-
tains an hotel, cheese factory, store, blacksmitll shop, the
township hall, and 70 inhabitants.

The Benilworth Cheese and Butter Mannfacturing
Company was incorporated in the spring of 1882 with a
capital of $3,000, and consumes the milk of 300 cows.

The post-office was established about 35 years ago, Wm.
Gunn being the first postmaster. Robert Hayward was
the first merchant.

MT. FOREST is a thrivinfi town, pleasantly situated on the
north line of the township, lying partly in Grey county.
The Owen Sound road passes through the town. It is also
an important station on the T. G. and B. R. R. and Geor-
gian Bay and Lake Erie Railway, which with their connec-
tions, renders it easy of access from all parts of the Pro-
vince. It is surrounded by a fertile agricultural country,
and is an important erain and cattle mart. A branch of
the Sangeen river, formerly known as the Maitland, passes
throngh the town and affords an excellent water privllege,
which has been utilized to a considerable extent. The
town is well laid out, and the public buildings, business
blocks, as well as private residences, inspire the beholdAr
with the idea of thrift and comfort. The churches are
mostly substantial brick buildings and comfortably fitted
np. A fine brick school house was erected in 1878, at a cost
of $6,000. It is two stories in height and surrounded
with a large roomy play ground. It is heated with steam
throughout, The claes rooms are well arranged, and fitted
with all necessary appliances required in institutions of
this character. The building is oecupied by both the
Model and Pnblic schools, this bP'-g the only Model
school in the county. Over 200 teac rs have been trained
here since its establish;pent in 1877.

Two firstclass hotels, the Colne House and the Queens,
with several other less pretentious but comfortable ones,
cater satisfactorily to the wants of the travelling public.

The town sustains two excellent local papers, the Con-
fed.erate and the Advocate, representing the two political
parties of the coantry, and enjoy a liberal patronage.
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Mt. Forest is distant from Toronto, 87 miles; from 
Guelph, 41 miles ; from Owen Sound, 44 miles ; from 
Orangeville, 35 miles. Population 2,304. 

The Vulcan Foundry Works were established in 184, 
and employ 14 hands in the manufacture of engines, mill 
machinery and general castings. H. H. Stovel 

The carriage works of iZeddick & Honey employ from 
eight to ten bands. 

Swan's carriage works have been established 27 years, 
and employ 20 hands. 

The Ox Horn Tannery has been established 23 years, 
and employs four or five hands in the manufacture of har-
ness, %per, kid and calf leather. Thos. Ainlay. 

The saw mill of' Geo. F. Burt hae been established 12 
years and manufactures lumber, lath and shingles. 

The shingle mill of Joseph Harris was tstablished in 
the spring of 1882, and turns out 15 squares daily. 

Martin's Mills (flouring and oatmeal) have been estab-
lished 28 years. There are tour runs of stones, with a 
capacity of 60 barrels  of  oatmeal daily, besides flour 
gristing. Martin & Sons. 

T1 -e Mt. Forest Mills (flouring) have four runs of stones. 
The 	nill  in connection manufactures lumber and lath. 

TI ;nterprise Woolen Mills have been e3tablished six 
years, and ernploy 20 hands in the manufacture of blank-
ete, flannels, tweeds, yarns &c. Geo Tanner. 

The carriage works of A. C. Wood & Son have been 
established six years and employ  six  hands. 

Mt. Forest Steam Mill (flour and oatmeal) has been 
established twelve years. There are four runs  of  stones, 
with a capacity of 2,000 barrels a wok. Wm. H. Hen-
dereon. 

The carriage worksof T. & J. Rysn have been established 
21 years, and employ from ten to twelve hands. 

'the planing mill of Wm. Gruer has been established 27 
years, and employs from 12 to 15 hands in the manufacture 
of sash, doors, blinds, and in a 4eneral building business. 

l'be Wellington Pottery was established in 1872, and 
employs four or five hands in the manufacture of earthen-
ware. E. W. Bradwin. 

The ashery of E. W. Bradwin bas been setablished 20  

ARTHUR. 

years, employs four or five hands, and turns out 100 barrels 
of potash annually. 

The  furniture manufactory of Chas. W. Cheesman has 
been established 25 years, and employs from eight to ten 
hands. 

The Iron Works of Kilgour & Sons were established in 
1880, and employ forty hands in the manufacture of the 
Princeea and Little Wonder Reapers, Lorne Mower, and 
other agricultural implements. 

The Mechanics' Inatitute sustains an excellent library 
and reading room, with a night school in the winter Beason. 
John Rogers, president ; H H. Stovel, secretary ; James 
Rogers, librarian. 

The Mt. Forest Horticultural Society was organized six 
or seven years ago, and is liberally sustained, there being 
between 200 and 300 members. The society pos,esses a 
spacious fair ground within the corporation, upon which 
suitable buildings were erected in 1881. Reel Lr  fair, are 
held annually. Thos. Swan, president ; J. C. Wilkes, sec-
retary-treasurer. 

The Young Men's Reform Association was organized in 
July, 1882. H. P. Yeomar.3, M. D., preeident ; E. B. 
Boselly, vice-president ; A. M. Shields, B. A., secretazy ; 
David Martin, treasurer ; Alex. tlow, S. E, Robertson, 
James Morrison, M. S. MeNiven, Harry C. Stovel, execu-
tive committee. Meets in their own rooms, Halsted's 
Block, each alternate Wednesday evening. 

The Young Men's Liberal Conservative Association W88 
organized in 1882. John Rogers, president ; E. Sherwood 
and George Allen  vicapresidents ; Thomas Wtod, record-
ing secretary ; W. H. Kingston, correeponding secretary ; 
J. P. Noonan, treasurer. 

The Mt. Forest Cemetery Co. was organized about four 
years ago. Thos. Reid, pi'eeident ; W. H. Kingston, secre-
tary. The cemetery contains 25 acres, nicely laid out, 
about a mile from the town. 

St. Albans Looige, A. F. and A.  M.  No. 200. E. B. 
Boselly, W. M.;  J. N. Cringle, Sec. Meets Friday on or 
before full moon. There are forty members. 

Garnet Lodge, No. 139, I. 0. 0. F., was organized April 
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29, 1874. I. S. Arinstromz, N. G.; J. H. Millward, R. S. 
Meets Tuesdays. There are 60 members. 

Mt. Forest L. O. L., No. 633, was organized about 1857. 
I. S. Armstrong, W. M. ; T. Ryan, Sec. Meets Friday 
after third Wednesday in each month. There are 35 
members. 

Mt. Forest Lodge, No. 159, A. O. U. W. was organized 
January 6th, 1882. James McMullen, M. P., P. M. W.; Wm. 
Colcleugh, M. W. ; J. C. Wilkes, Recorder. Meets second 
and fourth Mondays, in Odd Fellows' Hall. There are 16 
members. 

St. Paul's Church (Epis.) is a rough-east building, seating 
250, and was erected 3q, years ago. Services at 11 a in. 
and 7. p. m. Sunday School nt 9.30 a. m. Rev. C. Lee, 
M. A., incumbent. 

The Canada Methodist Church is of brick, with a seating 
capacity of 600. Services at 10.30 a. m. aad 6.30 p. in.; 
Sunday school at 2.30 p. in. ; Prayer meeting on.Thursday. 
A commodious brick parsonage adjoins the church, the 
whole property costing $16,000. There are 200 members. 
Rev. Thos. Brock, pastor. 

St. Andrew's Church (Presb.) is a rough-cast building, 
seating 350. Services at 11 a. m. and 6.30 p. in. Sunday 
s .hool at.  9.30 a. m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There 
are 200 members. Lev. Donald Fraser, pastor. 

The Baptist Church is a rough-east building, seating 
200. Services at 11  am. and 6.30 p.m. Sunday school at 
2.30 p.m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. There are 175 
members. Rev. E. Bosworth. 

The M. E. Church is a brick building, seating 400. 
Services at 10.30 a.m. and 6.30 p. m. Sunday school at 
2.30 p.m. Prayer meeting on Thursday. Young People's 
meeting on Wednesday. Rev. E. N. Baker. 

St. Mary's Church (R. C.) is of brick, seating 250. Ser-
vices at 10.30 a.m. and 7 p.m. Rev. B. J. O'Connell, priest. 

Knox Church (Presb.) is of brick, seating 550, and was 
erected in 1873. Services at 11  am. and 6.30 p.m. Sun-
day school at 2.30 p.m. Bible class on Monday. Prayer 
meeting on Thursday. There are 177 members. Rev. 
John Macmillan, pastor. 

ARTHUR. 	 Xiii. 

The site of Mt. Forest was reserved by the Government 
as a town plot and named by them. It was surveyed into 
lots in 1853, settlement commencing about that time. 
The first settlers were principally Scotch, with a few from 
Prince Edward County. The post office of Mt. Forest was 
established in 1852, with Robert McDonald as postmaster. 
Previous to this however, a post office called Maitland ex-
isted here, naméd after the stream which was supposed to 
be identical with the Maitland River, but was afterwards 
discovered to be a branch of the Saugeen. Jacob and 
David Yeomans established the first grist and saw mill, 
about 1855, known as the " Pepper Mill." Robert Mc-
Donald was the first merchant, in 1852. The first hotel 
was kept by " Grannie " Horsburg, about the seine time. 
A log church was erected by the Wesleyans, where the M. 
E. church now stands, which was used by all denominations. 
The first resident school teacher was Miss Jennings, who 
kept a private school. Rev. David Auld (Methodist New 
Connexion) was the first resident preacher. The first 
newspaper was established about 1857, by Thos. Greenhain 
of Fergus, and called the .Expre88. This  was succeeded 
by the Examiner in 1862, which was merged into the Con-
federate in 1880. The Confederate was established in 
1867 by the present publisher. The Mt. Fore4 Advocate 
was established in January, 1881, by E. G. Hart. 

Mt. Forest was incorporated as a village in 1862, and as 
a town in December, 1879. Thos. Swan waa the first 
mayor. 

Prruzirron is a post village on the Owen Sound Road, 
five miles from Arthur, and ten froin Mt. Forest. It con-
tains an hotel, two blacksmith shops, a store, wagon shop, 
a Baptist church, and 50 inhabitants. 

The 13aptist church is a frame building, seating 150. It 
was erected in 1861. Services at 11 a.m. Sunday school 
at 9.30  am.  Prayer meeting on Thursday. There are 40 
members. Rev. Mr. Sirrell, of Arthur, officiates. 

Petherton Star Lodge, No. 669, I. O. G. T.
' 
 was organ-

ized in the spring of 1882. Henry Bonner, W. C. ; Geo. 
Cushing, Sec. Meets Mondays. There are 38 members. 

L. O. L. No. 30, was organized Oct. 29th, 1859. Edward 
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XIV. 	 WRILLINGTON yourrY wfturroRy. 

Miles, W. M. Meets the first Monday in each month. 
There are 20 members. 

The post-office was established in 1869, with Thomas 
Brunston as postmaster. Daily mails are received. 

R1VER8TOWN is a post village on the Owen Sound Road, 
five miles from Mt. Forest. It contains a blacksmith shop, 
shoe shop, two stores, an Episcopal church, and 50 in-
habitants. 

Trinity Church (Epis.) is a roughcast building, seating 
300. It was erected 30 years ago. Services each alternate 
Sunday at 2.30 p, m. There are 40 families. Rev. C. Lee, 
of Mt. Forest, officiates. 

The post-office was established about 15 years ago, with 
Isaac Hunter as postrnaster. Daily mailsare received. 

WAGRAM is a post-office in the south-west part, eight 
miles from Mt. Forest. Near by is an hotel, blacksmith 
shop and store. 

The township commenced settling around Arthur village 
about 1840, and was about all settled by 1866. The first 
settleis were principally English, Irish and Scotch. Among 
the first settlers at Arthur village were John McIntosh, 
and Capt. Lamson. In the vicinity or Petherton settled 
John Rham, Robert and Richard Waters. About River-
stown were Thomas Stevenson, Bryan O'Donnell and Robert 
Morris. About Kenilworth there settled William Gunn, 
—Bacon, Isaac Thompson and John O'Donnell. The first 
birth was a daughter of Bryan O'Donrell, about 1841. 
The first saw-mill was built by Albert Townsend, on the 
1.Cth concession, about 1842. 

ERAMOSA township is bounded on the north by the 
township of West Garafraxa ; on the east by Erin ; on the 
south by the c ounty of Halton, and on the west by the town-
ships of  Guelph and. Nichol. Its area is 44,000 acres, 30,000 of 

which are cleared. The surface is of a rolling character, with 
a soil of clay and sandy loam. It is well watered, having 
two branches of the Speed running across the  v hole town-
ship, while various small rivulets supply the reme;ning 

parts and feed the main streams. The timber consists of 
beech, maple, elm, cedar, balsam, &c. The land is well 
adapted to agriculture, yielding good crops of fall and 
spring wheat, barley, oats, peas, turnips, &c., while a con-
siderable portion is devoted to stock raising and dairying. 
Eramosa presents a fine field for the geologist and lover of 
nature, the course of the southern stream being marked by 
rugged rocks. precipices and waterfalls, very romantic and 
beautiful. The southern part is traversed by the main 
line of the G. T. R., passing through Rockwood. There 
are eight post-offices in the township, viz : Eden Mills, 
Eramosa, Everton, Oustic, Rockwood, Shiloh, Speedside and 
Utoka. 

EDEN Mn.Ls is a post village on the Halton county line, 
seven miles from Guelph and four from Rockwood station. 
A branch of the Speed runs through the village, affording 
an excellent water power. A daily stage connects it with 
Guelph, and daily mails are received. The village con-
tains an hotel, flouring mill, wagon and blacksmith shop, 
general store, pump factory, shoe store, cooper shop, Metho-
dist church, and 200 inhabitants. 

Eden Mills (flouring and oatmeal) have been established 
about 25 years. There are five runs of stonee, with a 
capacity of 75 barrels a day. Albert Tolton. 

The Canada Methodist Church is a stone building, seat-
ing 250. and was erected in 1861. Services at 2.30 p.m. 
Sunday - school at 1 pan. There are 100 members. R,ev. 
W. J. Freeman, of Rockwood, officiates 

The village was settled in 1842 by Mr. Kribs, and the 
post office was established in 1851, Adam L. Argo being 
the first postmaster. 

ERAMOBA is a post village on the Eramosa and Erin road, 
five miles from Guelph, and contains an hotel, store, black-
smith shop, and 30 inhabitants. This was the first post 
office opened in the township. Daily mail by stage from 
Guelph. 

EvEntorr is a post village near the east line, a lit tle south 
of the Eramosa and Erin  rond,  10 miles from Guelph. It 
contains two stores, a cooper shop, three blacksmith shops, 
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two churches (Methodist and Disciples), a tailor shop,
hotel, flouring and saw mill, and 175 inhabitants .

The Everton Mills (flouring) have been established over
30 years. There are four runs of stones, with a capacity
of 100 barrels a day. Henry Ilortop.

Blooming Rose Lodge, No. 829, I . O. G. T. was organ-
ized about eight years ago. There are 30 members ; meet
Fridays.

The Canada Methodist Church is a stone building, seat-
ing 200. Services at 10 a.m. each alternate Sunday .
Sunday school at 3 p.m. Rev. J. W. Freeman, of Rock-
wood, officiates .

The Disciples , Church is a stone building, seatinge 350.

It was erected in 1861 at a cost of $2,5D0. Services at 11

a.m. Sunday school and Bible class at 4 p .m. There are

200 members. R. Ro5'ee, pastor .
Rufus Evert was the first postmaster . The first store

was kept by James Wylie. Rufus Evert erected the first
grist mill, and Win. Evert the first saw mill .

OnsTlc is a post village north of the center, 13 miles from
Guelph, eight from Fergus, and seven from Rockwood .

It contains a store, hotel, blacksmith shop, and 25 inhabit-
ants .

ROCKWOOD is a post village in the south part , near the

Halton county line, seven miles from Guelph, and 41 from

Toronto . It is also a station on the main line of the G . T.

R. The Eramosa branch of the River Speed passes through
the village, affording an extensive water power, which is

utilized by a numb er of Inills and factories . The river

here, as it courses along its rocky bed with a gradual de-

cline, presents a very picturesque aspect, well worthy of
the admiration of the lover of the grand and béautiful in

nature. The rocky limestone walls on either side rise to a

considerable height, increasing in altitude as the river is
descended, while at intervals the cliffs are indented with

caves of greater or less dimensions. At one point, near the
centre of the river, rises a solitary rock to the height of 80
or 100 feet, topped by a single tall tree, like a sentinel on
his watch tower . The village contains three hotels, a stave
and heading factory, two shingle mills, a cooper shop, cabi-

ERAHO9A. ZVII ,

net shop, two tailor shops , a grocery, book store, two flour
milla, two blacksmith shops, t wo wagon. shops, a woolen
mill, glove factory, an academy, harness shop, two general
stores, a shoe shop, stove store, bakery, five churches, and
600 inhabitants.

The Rockwood Woolen Mills were established in 1867,
and em ploy 25 hands in the manufacture of tweeds, flan-
nels and blankets . Harris & Co.

Lorne Mills (flouring) have been established 12 or 14
years. There are four runs of stones, with a capacity of
100 barrels daily. Win Farrish .

The Rcx- kwood Oat Mill has been established 25 or 30
years. There ar (w t,W.) runs of stones, with a capacity of 40
barrels daily . William Farrish .

The Rockwood Flonring Mills have been established 40
years . There are four runs of stones, with a capacity of
150 barrels a day. John Moore.

A saw mill, in connection with the above, employs eight
men in the manufactnre of shing les and heading .

The stave, heading, and shin g le mill of Barry Bros. has
been established 12 years ; the cooperage 30 years .

The Ontario Glove Works have been established 10
years ; 30 hands are employed in the manufacture of all
descriptions of gloves, turning out from $20,000 to $30,000
worth annually . W . H. Jago .

The Rockwood Academy, a boarding-school for young
men, has been established over 30 years . It was founded
by Mr. William Wetherald, now of St. Catharines, under
whose management it was conducted for many years .

The Presbyterian Church is a stone building, seating 250 .
It was erected in 180 . Services at 1 L a.m. and 6 .30 p .m . ;
Snnda,y school and Bible class at 10 a .m . ; prayer meeting
on Wednesday . There are 100 members. Rev. Donald
Strachan . pastor .

The Methodist Episcopal Chnrcll is a frame building.
seating 300 Services at 2 and 6 .30 p.m., alternately ;
prayer meeting on Wednesday . There are 85 members.
Rev. Mr. Durkee, pastor.

St . John's Church (Episcopal) is a atone building, seatin
200. It was erected in 1 882, at a cost of $3,500 . Rev. ~
W. Piibott, of Acton, officiates.
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